
Municipal Facilities Review Committee       Draft Minutes 
January 11, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 

Municipal Facilities Review Committee (MFRC) 

Meeting Minutes – January 11, 2016 
Note: Minutes are not final until reviewed and approved by the Committee. Review and approval of minutes generally takes place at the 

next regularly scheduled meeting of the Committee. 

Call to Order: 
The regular meeting of the Municipal Facilities Review Committee was called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Chairman 
Don Skiba.   
 
Committee Members Present:  Chair Skiba, Glenn Page, Wally Smith, Charlie Sheaff, Planning and Community 
Development Director Sara Carbonneau, Steve Bittel, Scott Self, and Keith Thibault. 
 
Absent:  None 
 
Others Present:  
Town Administrator Michael Branley, Fire Chief Norm Skantze, Fire Inspector Lt. Eric Mattson, Code 
Enforcement Officer Mike Jasmin, Public Works Director Lee Dunham, Police Chief Tom DeAngelis. 
 
Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes:  Minutes of December 14, 2015 were considered. Sheaff moved to accept 
the minutes of December 14, 2015. Seconded by Smith and all were in favor. Motion passed.  
 
Review of 2015 Swanzey Annual Report 
Skiba asked the members to review the draft annual report and asked for comments. Self said that it looked 
good to him. Smith asked for a reference to critical needs for managing the Town affairs. Self said to mention 
that the facilities are not going to get better over time and Branley noted that as time goes by, money won’t be 
cheaper. Sheaff noted “adding including health, safety and building code requirements specifically for Town 
Hall.” Sheaff asked for clarification of the sentence referring to bonding. Skiba said the bond could be split over 
several years. There was a discussion regarding bonding. Page spoke about the authorization on the TIF district, 
noting that all the dollars authorized has not been spent. Page also noted bids on the construction work could 
come in lower than anticipated costs. Discussion was about obtaining approval for up to $5.5 million, which can 
be borrowed over time similar to what was done for the TIF district. Change by Bittel “up to $5.5 million, 
including $100,000 for reserves and cost of issuance. Issuance of specific bonds could be over a multi-year 
period of time, as needed. It also noted to change Recycling Center verbiage to “Funding for the above will be 
obtained from the Recycling Revolving Fund and neither from Town General Funds, nor bonding.” 
 
There was a discussion regarding the impact on taxes of the bonding. Page mentioned ranges of taxes on a 
$200K home. Sheaff said that housing in Swanzey tends to be lower than $200K and he suggested using $100K 
home. Discussion was about a ten-year bond versus a twenty-year bond.  
 
Marketing of the Proposal 
Skiba spoke about the details of the requirements for each facility and he said the best source of requirements 
information is the Department Heads. Skiba spoke about details that the public might want to know. Skiba spoke 
about OSHA and ADA requirements. Bittel asked for a couple of photos of the bathrooms at the Recycling Center 
and DPW. Smith suggested a Q&A document for each department. It was suggested to remove the photo of the 
first proposed Fire Station should be removed from the Town website. Bittel suggested photos of the Police 
Department like the booking area, which is near the weapons. Sheaff noted that the CIP report might have some 
photos. Smith suggested a Q & A with photos would be effective. Skiba spoke about the Open House and 



Municipal Facilities Review Committee       Draft Minutes 
January 11, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 

whether all the facilities would be open. Branley said that the committee would produce displays in the Town 
Hall. Norm suggested a copy of each facility printed and put on large boards and placed on easels for the Open 
House. He also suggested a separate webpage with all the plans. Branley suggested a link to the MFRC page. 
Skiba said he would put together the exhibits. Branley said he would work on the webpage. Branley said there is 
money for printing. Skiba suggested GemGraphics to print and mount the plans. Sheaff suggested two each, one 
for each facility and one at Town Hall. Carbonneau asked about a 15-20 minute presentation at Town Hall. Bittel 
suggested a theme for each area – for Dunham it is basically the Salt Shed and ADA Code Issues. Skantze 
suggested photos of the attic be included. Bittel suggested consolidation of apparatus, and addressing Code 
Violations for the Fire Station. For Police, Officer-safety issues and the fact there is no separate female restroom 
facilities. DeAngelis said the original plan listed a number of deficiencies that he could provide. Self said the 
whole list would be impressive. Carbonneau noted that the laundry list won’t be addressed in the ten year plan. 
DeAngelis said he has 12 police officers now and the building is inadequate. Carbonneau cautioned about raising 
issues that won’t be addressed. 
 
Skiba asked for the teams that worked on the requirements to pull together the list of Q&A responses for the 
Open House. Page suggested that Skantze could point out the areas that don’t meet code requirements during 
the Open House. Skiba said he hopes to see a list of Q&A for each facility which would be a short list on one 
flipchart.  
 
Smith suggested a handout for the Recycling Center for those who do not come to the Open House. There was a 
discussion about campaigning at the Recycling Center which Town employees cannot do. Town funds cannot pay 
for something that says “Vote for the Bond”. Bittel mentioned that the Public Hearing tomorrow night is an 
important starting point for questions. Skiba asked the teams again to gather the information for each of the 
facilities and they agreed.  
 
Carbonneau noted that the Selectmen would like Bittel to come up with the term length of the bond. If the plan 
is to serve for 5-10 years, and having a bond for 20 years might not seem the best idea. She said the Board will 
be asking their advice. Bittel said in bond language, some of the facilities would have a 40 year life. There was 
discussion about the length of the service might be 20 years. Page suggested dropping the 5-10 year statements. 
Focus instead on what are minimum requirements. Jasmin said he thought that people will get hung up on the 
5-10 year solution. Smith pointed out that the timeframe was to assure the tax payers that we wouldn’t be 
asking for additional monies over the next 5-10 years. Skiba pointed out that the Committee focused on what 
the Selectmen asked for which was 5-10 years. Bittel asked to change the 4th paragraph to change “needs over 
the next ten year period…..” Bittel said that many of the facility changes will be serviceable for 20 years. For the 
Police Department it is a ten year fix at best. The proposal meets the needs of department requirements over 
the next ten years; ninety percent of the proposed facility changes which solves those needs, will be serviceable 
for 20 years or longer. Skiba said that the bond length is to be determined by the Board and not this Committee. 
 
Adjournment: 
A motion to adjourn was made by Sheaff with a second from Smith and all were in favor. Adjournment occurred 
at 5:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 


